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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA, EVANSVILLE, INDIANA

We have audited the financial statements of University of Southern lndiana (University), as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2012. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditino Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial
statements of the discretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the Universi$'s financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over financial
reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reportinq

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's internal control overfinancial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in

internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported underGovernmentAuditinq Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the University's audit committee, management,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. ln accordance with lndiana Code 5-11-5-1, this report is a part of the public
records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

October 23,2012

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA, EVANSVILLE, INDIANA

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the University of Southern lndiana (University) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Manaqement and Budoet (OMB) Circular A-133
Comoliance Supolement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the University's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The University's major federal programs are identified in the
Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of the University's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the University of Southern lndiana's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditinq
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments. and Non-Profit Oroanizations. Those stiandards and OMB CircularA-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboutthe University's com-
pliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the University's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, the University of Southern lndiana complied, in all material respects, with the compli-
ance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

lnternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible forestablishing and maintaining effective internalcontrol
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures forthe purpose of expressing ouropinion on compliance and to test and reporton internalcontrol
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University's internal control over compliance.

S]'A]'tl IIOARD Otr ACCOUN'IS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
(Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combi-
nation of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compli-
ance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or materialweaknesses. We did not identify any defi-
ciencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Exoenditures of FederalAwards

We have audited the financial statements of University of Southern lndiana as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 23,2012, which contained an un-
qualified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
FederalAwards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB CircularA-133 and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the finan-
cial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing stiandards gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financialstatements as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, AudiUFinance Committee,
Board of Trustees, others within the entity, federalawarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not in-
tended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. ln accordance with
lndiana Code 5-1 1-5-1, this report is a part of the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the
office examined.

/January 8, 201 3
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cluster Title  Pass-Through

Federal Grantor Agency Federal Entity (or Other)

Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards Expenditures
Number Number Expended to Subrecipients

Student Financial Aid Cluster

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Direct Grant

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunities Grant 84.007 140,640$           -$                         

Federal-Work Study Program 84.033 167,102             -                           

Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 13,040,198        -                           

Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 42,134,826        -                           

Academic Competitiveness Grant 84.375 4,813                 -                           
National Science and Mathematics Access to Retain Talent (Smart) Grants 84.376 8,000                 -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Education 55,495,579        -                           

Total for Student Financial Aid Cluster 55,495,579        -                           

TRIO -- Cluster

Direct Grant

TRIO Student Support Services 84.042A P042A100983 258,270             -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Education 258,270             -                           

Total for TRIO -- Cluster 258,270             -                           

Research and Development Cluster

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
Pass-Through McKean Defense Group 

NSWC Crane-MBA Patent to Business Translation 12.XXX 10USI5FCO2 5,000                 -                           

Total for Department of Defense 5,000                 -                           

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
Direct Grant

Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences 47.075 SES-1058485 96,468               -                           

Direct Grant
ARRA-Trans-NSF Recovery Act Research Support 47.082* I0S-0843370 4,424                 -                           

Pass-Through University of Tennessee

Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 CHE-9974734 560                    -                           

Pass-Through Indiana University
Education and Human Resources 47.076 BL-4840302-USI 15,300               -                           

Total for National Science Foundation 116,752             -                           

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass-Through Indiana University Purdue University in Indianapolis
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research 93.865 PO 984127 86,462               -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 86,462               -                           

Total for Research and Development Cluster 208,214             -                           

Other Programs

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Direct Grant
Rural Business Enterprise Grants 10.769 32,428               -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Agriculture 32,428               -                           

*Denotes ARRA programs

                    Program Title/Project Title

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

ldavid
Text Box
-6-



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Continued)

Cluster Title  Pass-Through

Federal Grantor Agency Federal Entity (or Other)

Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards Expenditures
Number Number Expended to Subrecipients

Other Programs (continued)

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION

Pass-Through Purdue University
Indiana Space Grant Consortium 43.XXX 4103-37885 4,500                 -                           

Total for National Aeronautics and Space Administration 4,500                 -                           

NATIONAL FOUNDATION FOR THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES

Direct Grant

Promotion of the Arts - Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 14,141               -                           

Pass-Through Arts Council of Southwestern Indiana

    Promotion of the Arts - Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 RIG10-APS-120014 2,844                 -                           

    Promotion of the Arts - Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 RIG10-APS-120016 1,622                 -                           
    Promotion of the Arts - Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 RIG10-APS-120024 2,714                 -                           

Total CFDA Number    45.024 21,321               -                           

Pass-Through Indiana Humanities Council

    Promotion of the Humanities - Federal/State Partnership 45.129 11-1009 1,196                 -                           

Total for National Foundation for the Arts and Humanities 22,517               -                           

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

Direct Grant

Education and Human Resources 47.076 DUE-0756978 262,712             -                           

Total for National Science Foundation 262,712             -                           

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Direct Grant

Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 DE-EE0005231 369,804             -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Energy 369,804             -                           

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Pass-Through Indiana Collegiate Action Network
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities-National Programs 84.184 Q184Z10004 250                    -                           

Pass-Through Evansville Vanderburgh School Corporation
Mathematics and Science Partnership 84.366 PO 194328 2,765                 -                           

Pass-Through National Writing Project Corporation

National Writing Project 84.928A 10-IN07 16,480               -                           

Total for U.S. Department of Education 19,495               -                           

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Direct Grant

Advanced Nursing Education Grant Program 93.247 618,756             -                           

Direct Grant

Advanced Education Nursing Traineeships 93.358 77,049               -                           

Direct Grant

Nurse Education, Practice Quality and Retention Grant 93.359 165,823             -                           

Direct Grant

ARRA - Equipment to Enhance Training for Health Professionals 93.411* 11,368               -                           

Pass-Through Purdue University
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 204171 1,626                 -                           

*Denotes ARRA programs

                    Program Title/Project Title

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Continued)

Cluster Title  Pass-Through

Federal Grantor Agency Federal Entity (or Other)

Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards Expenditures
Number Number Expended to Subrecipients

Other Programs (continued)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (continued)

Pass-Through Indiana University
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 A93-0-49-10-CW-0203 49,992               -                           

Pass-Through Indiana University Purdue University in Indianapolis
Area Health Education Centers Infrastructure Development Awards 93.824 P0909115, P1110964 159,008             52,731                 

Pass-Through YMCA of Southwestern Indiana

Pioneering Healthy Communities 93.XXX 22525 8,904                 -                           

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,092,526          52,731                 

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

Direct Grant
Learn and Serve America Higher Education 94.005 137,752             -                           

Pass-Through Indiana Office of Faith Based and Community Initiatives
AmeriCorps 94.006 F20-10-AF-0013 154,921             -                           

Pass-Through Indiana Office of Faith Based and Community Initiatives

Program Development and Innovation Grants 94.007 0012563533 967                    -                           
Program Development and Innovation Grants 94.007 720-2-DOS-12-002 1,213                 -                           

Total CFDA Number    94.007 2,180                 -                           

Pass-Through Indiana Office of Faith Based and Community Initiatives
Training and Technical Assistance 94.009 F20-2-911DSR-11-0001 1,998                 -                           

Total for Corporation for National and Community Service 296,851             -                           

Total for Other Programs 2,100,833          52,731                 

Total federal awards expended 58,062,896$      52,731$               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

                    Program Title/Project Title
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA 
EVANSVILLE, INDIANA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
June 30, 2012 

 
 
Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
University of Southern Indiana and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 
 
Note 2. Federal Family Educational Loans 
 

The number of guaranteed student loans and total amount for each program for University of Southern 
Indiana students for the year ended June 30, 2012, were as follows: 

 

 
 
Note 3. Federal Perkins Student Loan Program 
 

The University participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program.  Amounts loaned to students are 
recorded as notes receivable.  Gross student notes receivable outstanding at June 30, 2012, was:  

 
The above is presented as additional information and is not included in the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards.  

 
 
Note 4. Subrecipients 
 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the University provided federal awards to 
subrecipients as follows for the year ended June 30, 2012: 
 

 Federal 
 CFDA 

 Program Title    Number    Amount  

Area Health Education Centers Infrastructure Development Awards 93.824  $            52,731 
 

 
  

No. of
 Students      Amount      

Stafford Student Loan Program 5,953      38,597,691$   
Parents Loans for Undergraduate Students 495        3,422,175       

Totals 6,448      42,019,866$   

Federal
CFDA

Program Title    Number    Amount  

Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 -$                   
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
 

Section I – Summary of Auditor's Results 
 

Financial Statements: 
 

Type of auditor's report issued:   Unqualified 
 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified? no 
Significant deficiencies identified? none reported 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? no 

 
Federal Awards: 
 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses identified? no 
Significant deficiencies identified? none reported 
 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:   Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? no 
 

Identification of Major Programs: 
 

CFDA 
Number 

  
Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

 
N/A 

93.247 

  
Student Financial Aid Cluster 
Advanced Nursing Education Grant Program 

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $477,842 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes 
 
 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
 No matters are reportable. 
 
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
 No matters are reportable. 
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 
 
 No matters are reportable. 
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UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN INDIANA 
EXIT CONFERENCE 

 
 

 The contents of this report were discussed on January 8, 2013, with Mark Rozewski, Vice President 
for Finance and Administration and Treasurer; Steven J. Bridges, Assistant Vice President for Finance and 
Administration and Assistant Treasurer; Jeffrey M. Sickman, Controller and Assistant Business Office 
Director; Jina L. Campbell, Assistant Controller; Mary J. Harper, Director of Student Financial Assistance; 
Bradley V. Will, Director of Internal Audit; and J. Robert Howell, Internal Audit Manager.  Our audit disclosed 
no material items that warrant comment at this time. 
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Board of Trustees 2011–2012

University Officers 2011–2012

Trustees of the University gather before the May 2012 commencement ceremony. Left to Right: Front Row – W. Harold Calloway,  
Linda L.M. Bennett, Ted C. Ziemer, Jr., Susan E. Ellsperman ’13; Back Row – Ronald D. Romain ’73, Amy W. MacDonell, John M. Dunn, 
Jeffrey L. Knight, Ira G. Boots

Ted C. Ziemer, Jr., 2015	 W. Harold Calloway, 2014	 Jeffrey L. Knight, 2015
Chair	 Vice Chair	 Vice Chair
Evansville, Indiana	 Evansville, Indiana	 Evansville, Indiana

Amy W. MacDonell, 2014	 Ira G. Boots, 2012	 John M. Dunn, 2014
Secretary	 Evansville, Indiana	 Evansville, Indiana
Indianapolis, Indiana

Susan E. Ellsperman, 2013	 Ronald D. Romain, 2012	 Steven J. Schenck, 2012
Newburgh, Indiana	 Evansville, Indiana	 Fishers, Indiana

Linda L. M. Bennett
President

Cynthia S. Brinker Ronald S. Rochon Mark Rozewski
Vice President for Government  

and University Relations
Provost Vice President for Finance and  

Administration and Treasurer
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Message from the President

Since its founding in 1965, the University of Southern Indiana 
has been a model for student-centered postsecondary education, 
delivering high-quality teaching at the most affordable cost 
among baccalaureate-granting institutions in Indiana, providing 
community engagement to assist with economic and workforce 
development, and performing applied research needed in the 
region. In 2011–2012, the third year of a five-year strategic 
planning process, the campus community worked on initiatives, 
planning, and proposals to meet the important goals of the 
2010–2015 Strategic Plan. Designs are in place for the creation 
of advising centers in each of our four academic colleges as we 
move to a college-based intake advising model. The faculty spent 
much of the year revising the University Core Curriculum to make 
the core more concise, flexible, appealing, and accessible to 
students. These steps and others will help us increase graduation 
rates and enhance the overall experience of our students.

Student enrollment was 10,820, up from the 2010–2011 record 
of 10,702. In 2012, Spring Commencement exercises were held 
on campus for the first time since 1991, a move that was very 
popular with our graduates and their families. A record number 
of graduates participated in five ceremonies over two days, and 
USI now boasts 32,263 alumni.

As a leader in the region, USI seeks to partner with organizations and businesses that provide opportunities for learning. In 2011, the 
successful partnership of USI and Naval Surface Warfare Center (NSWC) Crane Division earned a Recognition of Excellence Award 
from the University Professional and Continuing Education Association for the development of an innovation discovery process used 
by NSWC Crane to increase patent production. A $1.2 million grant from the Health Resources and Services Administration allowed 
the College of Nursing and Health Professions to open the USI–Glenwood Community Health Center, the city’s first school-based 
health clinic, where primary care is provided to children and adults and USI nursing students gain valuable clinical experience.

USI students continued to excel in projects related to their fields of study. The fall 2011 musical Rent, its director Eric Altheide, and 
two cast members earned distinguished national awards from the Kennedy Center American College Theater Festival. The University 
partnered with the City of Evansville and the Department of Metropolitan Development to create Sculpt EVV, a juried outdoor 
sculpture exhibition in Evansville’s Haynie’s Corner Arts District. Two academic colleges collaborated to pilot the first Technology 
Commercialization Academy in summer 2012. The five-week academy brought together six engineering and six business students 
to develop ideas and business strategies around commercialization of Naval Surface Warfare Center Crane Division patents.

We continue to expand international partnerships and outreach, offering a global experience to University of Southern Indiana 
students. In 2011–2012, USI welcomed international students from across the globe and offered study programs in more than 
50 countries. Four Global Engagement Internships allowed students to work and study in Scotland, Africa, and India, and a 
group of 20 students traveled to Ghana to learn about that country’s culture and history.

A comprehensive university, the University of Southern Indiana attracts exceptionally qualified students as a result of its 
commitment to high-quality, affordable academic programs and building partnerships that benefit students, faculty, employers, 
the community, and the state. Guided by the Strategic Plan, the University has made progress during a time of economic 
challenge and is well-positioned for the future.

Linda L. M. Bennett
President 

Dr. Linda L. M. Bennett

President
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Message From The Vice President and Treasurer

To the President and the Board of Trustees of the 
University of Southern Indiana:

I am pleased to present the University of Southern 
Indiana’s audited financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012. The financial report 
has been prepared and presented in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles 
established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) for public colleges 
and universities. The University is regarded as a 
special-purpose government entity engaged only 
in business-type activities. As such, the financial 
report consists of the following basic statements: 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A); 
the Statement of Net Assets; the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; 
the Statement of Cash Flows; and the Notes to the 

Financial Statements. The report also contains the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement  
of Activities of the USI Foundation, a component unit of the University of Southern Indiana.

The financial statements provide a summary of the flow of economic resources during the fiscal 
year, the University’s financial position at fiscal year end, comparative data from the previous fiscal 
year, and the net assets available for future use. The statements and the accompanying notes have 
been audited by the Indiana State Board of Accounts. Their opinion appears on the following page.

This report is a complete and permanent record of the financial status of the University of Southern 
Indiana for the period stated therein.

Mark Rozewski
Vice President for Finance and Administration
and Treasurer

Mark Rozewski

Vice President  

for Finance and 

Administration 

and Treasurer
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Management’s discussion and analysis reviews the financial 
performance of the University during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012, and compares that performance with data 
from prior fiscal periods. It is designed to focus on current 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts.  
It is intended to answer questions that may result from 
the review of the information presented in the financial 
statements and to better explain the financial position of 
the University. The information presented in the financial 
statements, the notes to the financial statements, and the 
discussion and analysis are the responsibility of management.

Using the Annual Report
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements 
prepared from an entity-wide focus in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 35,  
Basic Financial Statements--and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities. These 
statements focus on the financial condition, the results of 
operations, and the cash flows of the University as a whole.

A key question to ask about the University’s finances is 
whether the institution as a whole improved or declined as 
a result of the financial activities from the fiscal year. The 
answer is found in the Statement of Net Assets; the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and the 
Statement of Cash Flows. Discussion and analysis of each of 
these statements are presented in the following pages.

Statement of Net Assets
The Statement of Net Assets presents the value of the assets, 
liabilities, and net assets at the end of the fiscal year. It is 
prepared under the accrual basis of accounting: revenues  
and expenses, and their impact on assets and liabilities,  
are recognized when service is provided or received by the 
University, regardless of when cash is exchanged. Assets and 
liabilities are classified as current (accessible or payable in  
one year or less) or non-current (accessible or payable  
beyond one year); net assets are invested in capital assets, 
restricted for specific purposes, or unrestricted.

Net assets are one indicator of current financial health.  
The increases or decreases in net assets that occur over time 
indicate improvements or deterioration of the University’s 
financial condition.

Assets
Current assets at June 30, 2012, consist predominantly of cash 
and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, 
and net of allowances for bad debt. Also included are prepaid 
expenses, inventory, deposit with bond trustee, and accrued 
interest. Non-current assets include capital assets net of 
depreciation, long-term investments, and deferred outflow 
of resources related to the series 2006 and Series 2008A 
hedgeable financial derivatives. Both current and non-current 
assets include lesser-valued resources that are grouped 
together and listed under the term “Other.”

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30 (in thousands)	 2012	 2011	 2010

Current assets	 $  58,770	 $61,564	 $  68,254
Non-current assets:	
	 Capital assets, net of depreciation	 176,744	 184,097	 180,872
	 Other non-current	 50,523	 42,780	 40,196

Total Assets	 $286,037	 $288,441	 $289,322

Current liabilities	 $  23,786	 $  25,899	 $  22,157
Non-current liabilities	 131,860	 136,744	 146,867

Total Liabilities	 $155,646	 $162,643	 $169,024

Net assets:
 Invested in capital assets, net of debt	 $  42,996	 $  40,675	 $  51,311
 Restricted–expendable	 334	 25	 44
 Unrestricted	 87,061	 85,097	 68,943
Total Net Assets	 $130,391	 $125,797	 $120,298
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Total assets decreased $2.4 million (.8 percent) in 2012 
compared to an $881,000 (.3 percent) decrease in 2011 and 
a $1.9 million (.7 percent) increase in 2010. The current year 
decrease is explained by the following fiscal year events:

•	Cash and investments increased $3.4 million in 2012 
compared to a $22.6 million increase in 2011, and a 
$10.2 million decrease in 2010 reflecting the positive 
contribution from operations in 2012. 

•	Student receivables comprise 54 percent of the total 
accounts receivable amount and increased only $50,345 
in 2012 compared to a $968,057 increase in 2011 and a 
$215,809 increase in 2010. Fiscal year 2012 student 
receivables are only one percent higher than those of fiscal 
year 2011, partially reflecting a combination of a modest 
enrollment increase of 1.1 percent and a fall and spring 
student fee increase of 4.5 percent netted against a summer 
2012 tuition discount of approximately 20 percent. 

•	Non-student receivables increased $1.1 million in 2012 
with a $1 million of the increase in direct student loan 
reimbursements from the Department of Education and 
various grant reimbursements due to the University and 
accrued as receivables for fiscal year end.

•	Gross capital assets decreased by $7.4 million in fiscal 
year 2012. Net capital assets increased $4.1 million as 
described in Note 17 of the Notes to Financial Statements 
but were offset by depreciation of $12 million generating 
the decrease in net capital assets.

Liabilities
Current liabilities at June 30, 2012, are primarily composed 
of accrued payroll and related benefits and deductions and 
the current portion of bonds payable. Also included are 
accounts payable, debt interest payable, deferred revenue, 
and other miscellaneous liabilities. Non-current liabilities are 
predominately bonds payable. Also included are derivative 
instruments-interest rate swap for Series 2006 and Series 
2008A hedgeable financial derivatives, compensated absences, 
termination and postemployment benefits, an unamortized 
bond premium, and miscellaneous other long-term liabilities. 
Total liabilities decreased $7 million (4.3 percent) in 2012 
compared to a decrease of $6.4 million (3.8 percent) in 2011 
and a decrease of $7.6 million (4.3 percent) in 2010. Activities 
that influenced this change include the following:

•	Accrued payroll, related benefits, and deductions 
increased $67,827 in 2012 compared to an $897,460 
increase in 2011 and an increase of $39,291 in 2010.

—— Recognition of voluntary termination benefits 
decreased $39,737 for 2012.

—— Benefit withholdings increased $87,742 for the 2012 
fiscal year. 

—— Fiscal year-end withholding liabilities increased 
$78,818 and wages payable decreased $264,515. 

—— The liability for post retirement benefits increased by 
$2.2 million in 2012 and has been reclassified from a 
current to a non-current liability. 

—— Compensated absences increased $217,208 and other 
minor changes in miscellaneous deductions explain 
the remaining 2012 changes.

•	The 2012 net change to notes and bonds payable equals 
a $9.4 million decrease.

—— Paying down the existing debt decreased bonds 
payable by $9 million.

—— See Note 6 in Notes to Financial Statements for more 
information on notes and bonds payable.

Net assets at June 30, 2012, are $4.6 million greater than on 
June 30, 2011. Capital assets, net of related debt, increased 
$2.3 million; restricted expendable assets increased 
$308,897; and unrestricted assets increased $2 million. 
Unrestricted assets equal $87.1 million and comprise 67 
percent of total net assets. Of the total unrestricted amount, 
$62.6 million has been internally designated as follows:

•	$17.2 million reserve for equipment and facilities 
maintenance and replacement

•	$15.8 million reserve for University benefits

•	$12 million reserve for auxiliary systems

•	$4.5 million reserve for working capital and outstanding 
encumbrances

•	$6 million reserve for academic operations and initiatives

•	$2.8 million reserve for insurance and equipment

•	$3.4 million reserve for medical premiums
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses,  
and Changes in Net Assets
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Assets presents the revenues earned and the expenses 
incurred during the fiscal year. This statement tells the reader 
to what extent the results of operations, non-operating 
revenues, and capital funding have had on the net assets  
of the University.

Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating. 
Student fees and revenues from auxiliary enterprises are 
the major sources of operating income. Operating income 
is reduced by discounts and allowances for scholarships, 
room, and board. Discounts and allowances are institutional 
resources provided to students as financial aid up to and 
equal the amounts owed by the students to the institution.

An important point to recognize on this financial statement 
is that state appropriations and non-exchange governmental 
and corporate grants are required to be classified as non-
operating revenues. This creates large operating deficits for 
public universities which rely heavily on state funding and 

governmental grants to meet their missions and goals. A truer 
measure of fiscal year net income is the amount shown on 
the statement as “Income/(expenses) before other revenues, 
expenses, gains, or losses.”

2009–20102010–20112011–2012

Invested in Capital Assets Restricted—Expendable Unrestricted
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30 (in thousands) 	 2012	 2011	 2010  

Total operating revenues	 $ 73,235	 $ 69,622	 $ 66,704
Total operating expenses	 (140,344)	 (135,537)	 (127,562)

Operating losses	 (67,109)	  (65,915)	 (60,858)
Net non-operating revenues/(expenses)	 71,322	 69,049	 70,333
Income before other revenues, 
 expenses, gains, or losses	 4,213	 3,133	 9,475
Capital gifts, grants, and appropriations	 381	 2,366	 45
Increase/(decrease) in net assets	 $  4,594	 $  5,499	 $  9,520
 

2009–20102010–2011

State Appropriations Auxiliary Enterprises Net Student Fees Grants & Contracts All Other Revenue
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Revenue SOURCES

Revenues
Operating revenues increased $3.6 million (5.2 percent) in 
2012 compared to $2.9 million (4.4 percent) in 2011 and $1.9 
million (2.9 percent) in 2010. The increases are explained by 
the following significant fiscal year activities:

•	Net student fee revenue increased from $41.8 million  
in 2011 to $43.3 million in 2012. This change was due 
principally to a fall and spring student fee increase of 4.5 
percent netted against a summer 2012 tuition discount of 
approximately 20 percent and an enrollment increase of 
1.1 percent. 

•	Auxiliary income increased from $24 million in 2011 to 
$25 million in 2012. The increase stemmed from a 7.6 
percent increase in housing, a 13.9 percent increase in 
parking income, and a 10.8 percent increase in dining 
revenues in 2012.

Non-operating revenues experienced an increase of 2.6 
percent for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, compared  
to a 1.5 percent decrease in 2011.

•	State appropriations increased 1.8 percent from $50.7 
million in 2011 to $51.6 million in 2012. The increase in 
operating funding resulted from the University’s performance 
related to the State of Indiana funding model that now 
uses performance metrics to determine funding levels. 

•	Federal grants and contracts decreased $1 million  
(6.5 percent) compared to an increase of $2.2 million 
(16.4 percent) in 2011. Federal student financial assistance 
accounted for $977,000 of the decrease due to the 
elimination of the Academic Competitiveness and  
SMART grant programs.

•	Gift income increased $1 million in 2012 primarily as a 
result of increased scholarship giving from the University 
of Southern Indiana Foundation after the recovery of its 
endowment funds.

•	Investment income decreased by $413,062 in 2012 as a 
result of declining interest rates.

Total revenues (operating, non-operating, and other) increased 
$3.7 million in fiscal year 2012. The graph below shows the 
composition of the University’s revenue for fiscal years 2010–2012:
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Expenses
Operating expenses increased $4.8 million (3.6 percent)  
this fiscal year compared to an $8 million (6.25 percent) 
increase in 2011. The growth in operating expenses was 
driven by increases in salaries and benefits. Changes in 
expense categories were as follows:

•	Compensation (salaries, wages, and benefits) comprised 
57.3 percent of total operating expenses and increased 
7.5 percent over 2011. Salaries and wages increased  
$1.7 million and benefit expenses increased $3.9 million. 
Instructional salary expenses increased by $206,000  
(1 percent) while administrative salaries increased by just 
under $408,000 (2.7 percent) and support staff salaries 
increased $438,000 (4.4 percent). Medical insurance 
costs increased by $664,000. 

•	Student financial aid decreased by $586,177 for a 5.4 percent 
decrease. Federal Pell grants decreased by $735,000, 
other federal aid decreased by $977,000 due to the 
elimination of the Academic Competitiveness and SMART 
grant programs, non-employee remitted fees increased by 
$538,000, and state financial aid increased $667,000. 

•	Supplies and other services expense decreased by $2.3 
million (6.6 percent) in 2012 compared to $3.6 million 
(11.8 percent) increase in 2011. Decreases were 
predominantly in the area of capital outlay including a 
decrease in capital and non-capital equipment expense 
of $3.3 million with other expense classifications 
remaining flat or slightly below 2011 levels. Increases  
in honorariums and professional services of $1.2 million 
and software licenses of $369,000 netted against the 
reduction in equipment expenses produced the $2.3 
million reduction in this expense category. 

•	Depreciation increased $1.9 million or 18.7 percent,  
in fiscal year 2012 compared to an increase of $380,000, 
or 4 percent, in fiscal year 2011.

Non-operating expenses consist of interest on capital asset-
related debt and other costs associated with issuing bonds 
and refinancing debt. These expenditures decreased $257,000 
this year compared to an increase of $111,000 in 2011.  
The change in fiscal year 2012 resulted from less interest  
on capital debt expense.

Total expenses (operating and non-operating) increased 
$4.5 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to an $8.1 million 
increase in 2011 and a $7.6 million increase in 2010. The 
composition of total expenses for all three years is depicted 
by major categories in the graph below.

Change in Net Assets
The difference between annual revenues and expenses causes 
an increase or decrease to net assets. For fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2012, net assets increased $4.6 million compared to 
a $5.5 million increase for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. 
Total revenues increased more than total expenses during 
fiscal year 2012. 

2009–2010

Wages & Benefits Utilities, Supplies, & Services Student Financial Aid Depreciation Non-operating Expenses
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Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows provides additional information 
about the financial health of the University by helping the 
user assess the ability to generate future cash flows, the ability 
to meet obligations as they come due, and the need for 
external financing.

This statement identifies the sources and uses of cash and 
equivalents throughout the fiscal year and informs the user 
how much cash was used by or provided by the following 
activities: operating, noncapital financing, capital financing, 
and investing. The chart below shows the University’s 
sources, uses, and changes in cash and cash equivalents  
for fiscal years 2010–2012:

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended June 30 (in thousands)	 2012	 2011	 2010 

Net cash (used)/provided by
 Operating activities	 ($53,906)	 ($53,865)	 ($51,013)
 Noncapital financing activities 	 77,260	 75,583	 75,019
 Capital financing activities	 (20,723)	 (27,163)	 (53,292)
 Investing activities	 (9,132)	 33,345	 19,356

Net increase/(decrease) in cash	 $  6,501	 $27,900	 ($  9,930)

Operating activities
•	Cash used by operating activities increased $41,406  

in 2012 compared to a $2.9 million increase from 2010  
to 2011.

•	Student fees and auxiliary enterprises provided the  
largest inflow in cash for all fiscal years.

•	Payments to employees (wages and benefits) and 
suppliers caused the largest outflow of cash for all  
fiscal years.

Noncapital financing activities
•	Cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

increased $1.7 million in 2012 compared to a $563,879 
increase from 2010 to 2011.

•	State appropriations provided the largest cash inflow  
in all fiscal years. 

Capital financing activities
•	Cash used by capital financing activities decreased  

$6.1 million in 2012 compared to a $26.1 million 
decrease in 2011. 

•	Proceeds from refunding Series 2001A bonds generated 
the largest cash inflow in 2012; capital gifts and grants 
generated the largest cash inflow in 2010 and 2011. 

•	Principal and interest paid on capital debt generated  
the largest cash outflow in 2012 while purchases of 
capital assets generated the largest cash outflow in  
2010 and 2011.

Investing activities
•	Cash used by investing activities increased $42.2 million 

during 2012 compared to a $14 million increase in 2011. 
The 2012 increase resulted partially from a change in  
the amount on deposit with the bond trustee for the 
Series J Bonds. 

•	Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
decreased $4.5 million in 2012 compared to a $6.9 
million decrease in 2011.

•	Cash used for purchases of investments increased $10.3 
million in 2012 following an $11.5 million decrease from 
2010 to 2011. 

Summary of Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2012, more cash was used for 
operating activities, more cash was provided by noncapital 
financing activities, less cash was used by capital financing 
activities, and more cash was used by investing activities than 
in the previous fiscal year. As a result of these activities, the 
University decreased its cash position by $6.5 million, ending 
the fiscal year with a cash balance of $31.2 million.
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Factors Impacting Future Periods
The 2009 Indiana General Assembly approved $15 million 
in bonding authority for the construction of a $16.5 million, 
350-seat Teaching Theatre on the USI campus to replace the 
current theatre, costume shop, and scene shop located four 
miles from campus. The project received final approvals from 
the Commission for Higher Education and the State Budget 
Committee in 2011 and construction began in August 2012. 
The University intends to avail itself of only $13 million of the 
$15 million legislative authorization, and fund the balance of the 
$16.5 million project from $2 million in private gifts, currently 
being solicited, and $1.5 million of University resources, much 
of which has already been expended to fund the design. In the 
event that private gifts are not forthcoming, the University has 
access to endowment income from the University of Southern 
Indiana Foundation that will cover any shortfall. 

In the fall of 2012, the University will issue $13 million in fee 
replacement bonds for the teaching theatre and in addition 
will refund $43.9 million in Series H and I fee replacement 
bonds. With interest rates at historic lows, refunding savings 
to the State of Indiana are expected to exceed $5.8 million 
over the life of the bonds and generate over 11 percent in net 
present value savings. 

The University is dependent upon appropriations provided 
by the State of Indiana, and monitors the financial position 
of the State very closely. Indiana closed its most recent fiscal 
year with a $2 billion surplus. Indiana law requires the State’s 
Commission on Higher Education to issue non-binding tuition 
increase recommendations to the state universities. While the 
Commission’s recommendations are non-binding, in practice 
they have considerable weight in the Trustees’ decision-making 
process on raising tuition revenue. The State of Indiana has 

implemented performance metrics as a component of state 
appropriation funding to Indiana public universities. For the  
2012–13 fiscal year, state operating appropriations were 
reduced by 5 percent across Indiana public higher education 
institutions and institutions were then measured by defined 
performance metrics to determine the dollars that would be 
restored to individual institution budgets. The University of 
Southern Indiana performance results exceeded the original 
reduction of 5 percent with the University receiving 5.4 percent 
in the performance-based funding. For the 2013–14 fiscal 
year, institution budgets will be reduced by 6 percent and 
institutions will again be measured to determine the amount 
of performance funding that will be returned to operating 
budgets. Current indications are that USI performs well on all 
of the applicable performance metrics being advanced by the 
State, which should lead to a modest appropriation increase in 
the coming fiscal year. The University continues to seek equity 
adjustments to its appropriation that begin to rectify the fact 
that the University operates with a lower appropriation per 
student than almost all other four-year universities in Indiana.

Healthcare costs are expected to increase significantly for 
the 2013 calendar year. The University is currently modifying 
the designs of its three health plans, and modeling employer/
employee contribution changes to minimize the impact of 
this increase. These costs may cause the University to cease 
contributions to its VEBA Trust, and begin drawing from the 
Trust to supplement the University health care budget.

USI maintains its reputation as a great value in higher 
education. The University’s market position, value, quality, 
and pricing have helped it continue to grow enrollment and 
broaden the catchment area for prospective students while 
increasing student quality during a period of challenging 
economic times. The entering fall 2012 class, although slightly 
smaller in number than its preceding class, is the strongest 
academic class in the history of the University in terms of 
entering grade point average and test scores. This is a result 
of calculated upward revisions to admissions requirements 
designed to decrease the need for expensive remediation and 
increase the graduation rate. The slight decline in enrollment 
that resulted from these changes was anticipated and 
accounted for in the operating budget. 

The University of Southern Indiana is maturing. Its rate of 
growth is leveling, as it continues to develop into a residential 
campus and gains prominence not only locally and regionally 
but also nationally and internationally. Total enrollment for 
academic years ending 2008 through 2012 reflects an increase 
of 8.9 percent; full-time equivalents for the same period 
increased 9.7 percent. Full-time students represent 83.5 percent 
of the total student population. Housing occupancy has been 
consistently well in excess of 90 percent the past five-year 
period, and was 92 percent on the first day of classes in the 
current year. The following graph illustrates enrollment and 
housing occupancy for the five-year period 2008 to 2012.
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Statement of Net Assets

As of June 30 2012 2011

ASSETS� Reclass *
Current Assets
   Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $   31,190,213 $   37,690,741
   Short-term investments (Note 3) 15,656,177 12,643,370
   Accounts receivable (Note 4) 9,317,060 8,201,817
   Inventories 1,195,013 1,459,180
   Deposit with bond trustee 54,642 52,379
   Other current assets 1,357,146 1,216,091
      Total current assets $   58,770,251 $   61,263,578

Noncurrent Assets
   Long-term investments (Note 3) $   46,972,627 $   40,099,897
   Deferred outflow of resources (Notes 5) 2,899,717 1,857,807
   Deposit with bond trustee 300,000 300,000
   Capital assets, net (Notes 16 & 17) 176,744,006 184,097,001
   Other noncurrent assets 350,639 822,136
      Total noncurrent assets $ 227,266,989 $ 227,176,841
            Total Assets $ 286,037,240 $ 288,440,419

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $     1,615,771 $     1,574,040
   Accrued payroll, benefits, and deductions 6,715,057 6,650,237
   Notes and bonds payable (Note 6 & 7) 10,709,160 9,393,392
   Debt interest payable 1,991,121 2,182,085
   Deferred revenue 1,936,808 2,045,431
   Other current liabilities 818,339 967,633
      Total current liabilities $   23,786,256 $   22,812,818

Noncurrent Liabilities
   Notes and bonds payable (Note 6 & 7) $ 120,301,498 $ 131,010,659
   Unamortized bond premium 1,082,867 1,181,309
   Derivative instruments-interest rate swap (Note 5) 2,899,717 1,857,807
   Other postemployment benefits (Note 18) 5,285,749 3,085,915
   Compensated absences and termination benefits (Notes 9 & 10) 2,253,827 2,651,020
   Other noncurrent liabilities 36,357 43,624
      Total noncurrent liabilities $ 131,860,015 $ 139,830,334
            Total Liabilities $ 155,646,271 $ 162,643,152

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $   42,995,532 $   40,675,094
Restricted
   Expendable 
      Debt Service 300,000 300,000
      Scholarship, research, and other 34,233 25,336
      Repairs and rehabilitation
Unrestricted      87,061,204 84,796,837

            Total Net Assets $ 130,390,969 $ 125,797,267

*See Note 18 in the Notes to Financial Statements.



Financial Report 2012

15

Component Unit	 University of Southern Indiana Foundation

	S tatement of Financial Position
	Y ear Ended June 30, 2012

Assets
Cash� $     599,014
Accounts and interest receivable� 83,176
Contributions receivable, net� 4,729,501
Prepaid expenses� 17,535
Investments� 70,416,808
Cash value of life insurance� 258,726
Beneficial interest in charitable remainder trusts� 680,416
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts� 3,005,440
Beneficial interest in Community Foundation� 55,467
Real estate held for investment� 2,406,765
Land� 289,918
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation;

2012 – $215,818, 2011 – $244,253� 669,488
Buildings held for disposal, net of accumulated depreciation;

2012 – $47,972, 2011 – $0� 207,428
Property management deposits� 3,775

Total assets� $83,423,457
	

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable� $       30,038
Deposits� 2,700
Deferred income� 14,610
Payable to related parties� 415,111
Annuities payable� 1,912,038

Total liabilities� 2,374,497

Net Assets
Unrestricted� 12,443,665
Temporarily restricted� 32,819,586
Permanently restricted� 35,785,709

Total net assets� 81,048,960

Total liabilities and net assets� $83,423,457
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30            2012            2011

REVENUES
Operating Revenues
   Student fees $  62,043,693 $  59,842,645
      Scholarship discounts & allowances (18,704,782) (18,042,400)
   Grants and contracts 2,180,821 1,669,781
   Auxiliary enterprises 25,412,932 24,669,747
      Room & board discounts & allowances (453,303) (713,912)
   Other operating revenues 2,755,407 2,196,252
         Total operating revenues $  73,234,768 $  69,622,113

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
   Compensation:
      Salaries & Wages $  55,386,900 $  53,719,281
      Benefits (Notes 11, 12, & 13) 20,642,206 17,865,688
      Other postemployment benefits (Note 14) 4,345,355 3,197,243
   Student financial aid 10,343,969 10,930,146
   Utilities 5,754,420 5,579,139
   Supplies and other services 31,897,994 34,155,182
   Depreciation 11,973,251 10,090,913
         Total operating expenses $140,344,095 $135,537,592
               Operating loss $ (67,109,327) $ (65,915,479)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
   State appropriations $  51,578,673 $  49,657,868
   Gifts 2,278,671 1,205,951
   Federal grants and contracts 15,072,366 16,116,920
   State and local grants and contracts 8,060,351 7,619,097
   Nongovernmental grants and contracts 287,313 310,637
   Investment income (net of investment expense of 
      $58,208 and $51,521 for 2012 and 2011) 763,322 1,113,971
   Interest on capital asset-related debt (6,652,700) (6,906,545)
   Other non-operating expenses (66,139) (69,172)
         Net non-operating revenues $  71,321,857 $  69,048,727
               Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses $    4,212,530 $    3,133,248

   Capital appropriations 1,086,974
   Capital grants and gifts 381,172 1,278,854
         Total other revenues 381,172 2,365,828
               Increases in net assets $    4,593,702 $    5,499,076

NET ASSETS
   Net assets – beginning of year $125,797,267 $120,298,191
   Net assets – end of year $130,390,969 $125,797,267
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Component Unit	 University of Southern Indiana Foundation

	S tatement of Activities
	Y ear Ended June 30, 2012

				    Temporarily	P ermanently 
			   Unrestricted	 Restricted	 Restricted	 Total

Revenues and Other Support
   Contributions $     111,267 $  5,533,200  $  2,143,664 $  7,788,131
   Contribution from USI New Harmony
      Foundation — — — —
   Change in value of split-interest agreements — (100,540) (66,230) (166,770)
   Rental income (loss), net 	 (42,570) — — (42,570)
   Miscellaneous income 88,735 134,228 — 222,963
   Reclassification of donor intent — 	 (97,682) 97,682 —
   Net assets released from restrictions 2,671,556 	 (2,671,556) — —

         Total revenues and other support 2,828,988 2,797,650 2,175,116 7,801,754

Expenses 
   Programs – University of Southern Indiana
      Scholarships and awards 1,620,068 — — 1,620,068
      Educational grants and academic enhancements 607,555 — — 607,555
      Athletic support 48,946 — — 48,946
      Other University support 541,417 — — 541,417
      Capital projects — — — —
      Community outreach 28,089 — — 28,089

         Total program services 2,846,075 — — 2,846,075

   Management and general 573,181 — — 573,181
   Fundraising 208,397 — — 208,397
   Uncollectible pledge loss — 28,485 — 28,485

         Total expenses 3,627,653 28,485 — 3,656,138

Other Changes
   Investment income, net 629,510 319,318 798 949,626
   Change in value of beneficial interests — (4,291) (86,989) (91,280)
   Mineral royalty income 122,142 — — 122,142
   Loss on sale of property (94,805) — — (94,805)
   Property contribution – University of Southern Indiana (27,360) — — (27,360)
   Gain on cash value of life insurance — 79,890 — 79,890

         Total other changes 629,487 394,917 (86,191) 938,213

Change in Net Assets (169,178) 3,164,082 2,088,925 5,083,829

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 12,612,843 29,655,504 33,696,784 75,965,131

Net Assets, End of Year 	 $12,443,665 	 $32,819,586 	 $35,785,709 	 $81,048,960
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Statement of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities Reclass *

   Tuition and fees $  42,679,127 $ 41,686,275
   Grants and contracts 1,988,308 1,372,753
   Payments to suppliers (31,725,086) (34,048,702)
   Payments for utilities (5,754,420) (5,579,139)
   Payments to employees (55,651,416) (53,218,582)
   Payments for benefits (22,855,584) (19,089,242)
   Payments for scholarships (10,343,969) (10,930,146)
   Loans issued to students (479,097) (413,507)
   Collection of loans to students 476,925 440,539
   Auxiliary enterprises receipts 24,995,408 23,688,050
   Sales and services of educational depts. 354,718 171,094
   Other receipts (payments) 2,408,834 2,055,761
   Net cash used by operating activities $ (53,906,252) $(53,864,846)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
   State appropriations $  51,578,673 $50,218,831
   Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 25,698,702 25,252,605
   Other non-operating receipts (payments) (16,306) 111,159
   Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities $  77,261,069 $75,582,595

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
   Proceeds from capital debt $  11,550,000 $                  
   Capital appropriations    1,086,974
   Capital grants and gifts 298,827 1,241,638
   Bond financing costs (66,141) (69,171)
   Purchase of capital assets (4,620,255) (13,315,571)
   Principal paid on capital debt (20,943,392) (9,021,775)
   Interest paid on capital debt and leases (6,942,106) (7,084,877)
   Deposit with trustee (300,000)
   Net cash provided by capital financing activities $ (20,723,067) $(27,462,782)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $  34,272,218 $ 38,792,003
   Interest on investments 893,340 1,455,965
   Purchase of investments (44,295,573) (33,731,469)
   Change in deposit with trustee (2,263) 27,128,597
   Net cash used by investing activities $   (9,132,278) $ 33,645,096

   Net increase (decrease) in cash $   (6,500,528) $ 27,900,063
   Cash – beginning of year 37,690,741 9,790,678
   Cash – end of year $  31,190,213 $ 37,690,741

*See Note 18 in the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows–continued

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2012 2011

Reconciliation of net operating revenues (expenses)  
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Reclass *

   Operating loss $ (67,109,327) $(65,915,479)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash  
provided (used) by operating activities:
   Depreciation expense 11,973,251 10,090,913
   Provision for uncollectible accounts 31,023 38,231
Changes in assets and liabilities:
   Receivables (1,146,266) (1,542,214)
   Inventories 264,167 416,890
   Other assets 422,760 3,691
   Accounts payable (26,438) 782,211
   Deferred revenue (108,623) 1,242,120
   Deposits held for others (7,266) (390,007)
   Employee and retiree benefits 1,802,640 1,381,765
   Loans to students (2,173) 27,032
   Net cash used by operating activities: $ (53,906,252) $(53,864,846)

Noncash Transactions
   Unrealized gain/(loss) on short-term investments $ (51,501) $ (21,527)
   Unrealized gain/(loss) on long-term investments 90,537 198,381
   Bonds payable – LT and ST Series 2001A 1,406,674 —
   Bonds payable – LT and ST Series 2011A (1,406,674) —
   Net noncash transactions $ 39,036 $ 176,854
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Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 – �Summary of Significant  
Accounting Policies

The University of Southern Indiana was established in 1985  
as described in the Indiana Code (IC 21-24-1 through IC 21-
24-4-1). The University is managed by a nine-member board 
of trustees whose members are appointed by the governor. 
The board must include at least one alumnus, one resident 
of Vanderburgh County, and one full-time student in good 
standing. Each member must be a citizen of the United States 
and a resident of the State of Indiana. Trustees serve four-year 
terms with varying expiration dates with the exception of the 
student trustee, who serves a term of two years.

The University is a special-purpose governmental entity 
which has elected to report as a business-type activity using 
proprietary fund accounting, following standards set forth  
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
The financial reporting emphasizes the entity as a whole 
rather than the individual fund groups—unrestricted, 
designated, auxiliary, restricted, loans, agency, and plant 
funds—that comprise the whole.

The University also is considered a component unit of 
the State of Indiana. As such, the University is financially 
integrated with the State and depends on annual appropriations 
from the State to maintain quality service to students and 
to deliver quality programs. The University must receive 
authorization from the State before undertaking major capital 
projects. As a component unit, public higher education 
institutions, as a group, will be discretely presented on the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report issued annually  
by the State of Indiana.

The University includes the University of Southern Indiana 
Foundation, Inc. as a component unit as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 
are Component Units. The Foundation is a private nonprofit 
organization that reports under the standards of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from 
GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. 
No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial 
information in the University’s financial report for these 
differences.

Accounting Methods and Policies
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.

•	Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities 
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions 
are recognized when the exchange takes place.

•	Restricted revenues and receivables resulting from non-
exchange transactions are recognized when all applicable 
eligibility requirements are met. Resources received 
before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as 
deferred revenues.

•	Revenue from major sources is susceptible to accrual if 
the amount is measurable.

•	Internal service activity, referred to as chargeback 
income/expense, has been eliminated from the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 
to prevent the double-counting of expenses and the 
recognition of self-generated revenue.

Capital Assets Accounting Policies
The University capitalizes equipment with a cost of  
$5,000 or more. Building components, land improvements, 
infrastructure, and computer software are capitalized if costs 
exceed $50,000. All capitalized assets have a useful life 
greater than two years. Library materials are capitalized using 
the group method. Periodicals and subscriptions are expensed 
as incurred. Renovations to buildings and other improvements 
are capitalized if costs are greater than $50,000 and the 
renovation meets one of the following criteria:

•	Increases the capacity (applies to buildings only)

•	Increases the useful life

•	Increases the operating efficiency

The University records depreciation for all capital assets 
with the exception of land and historical sites. Depreciation 
is calculated on a straightline basis over the estimated useful 
life of the asset. The estimated useful life of each capital asset 
group is as follows:

•	Building components (shell, roof, utilities, and internal) –  
8 to 50 years

•	Computer Software – 3 years

•	Equipment – 3-10 years

•	Infrastructure – 25 years

•	Land improvements – 15 years

•	Library materials – 10 years 

Capital assets are removed from the records at the time of 
disposal. See Note 17 in the Notes to Financial Statements  
for current-year activity and accumulated depreciation on  
the various classes of assets.

The University owns a collection of museum exhibit items 
located in Historic New Harmony. The collection consists of 
2,800 objects that are primarily 19th century decorative arts, 
furniture, prints, medical equipment, and textiles. The collection 
consists of both donated and purchased items. Per the code 
of ethics for museums, Historic New Harmony does not place 
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a monetary value on the collection. Museums are organized 
as public trusts that act as stewards for the public in collecting, 
protecting, preserving, and interpreting objects. A well-
documented inventory is maintained, but the value is unknown 
and therefore not included in the capitalized asset value at 
June 30, 2012.

The University owns a permanent art collection whose 
primary function and aim is education in accordance with 
one element of the University’s mission: to enhance the 
cultural awareness of its students, faculty, staff, and the 
citizens of southwestern Indiana. The collection consists of 
both donated and purchased items. Many of the donated 
pieces were received without appraised values. Collection 
pieces which have been appraised or purchased are valued  
at $2,046,633. Appraised values for the remaining collection 
will be obtained over future periods. The currently-known 
value is not included in the capitalized asset value at  
June 30, 2012. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues of the University consist of student fee 
income, operating grants and contracts, collections of loans 
to students, sales and services of educational activities, and 
auxiliary enterprise revenues. Operating expenses include 
payments to suppliers for goods and services, employee 
wages and benefits, and payments for scholarships. 

Non-operating Revenues and Expenses
Non-operating revenues of the University consist of state 
appropriations, gifts, non-exchange grants, and investment 
income. Non-operating expenses include interest on capital 
asset related debt, bond issuance costs, and annual bond 
management fees.

Other Disclosures
The Statement of Cash Flows is presented using the direct 
method, and it identifies the sources and uses of both cash 
and cash equivalents during the fiscal year. Cash equivalents 
are investment instruments, typically certificates of deposits 
and repurchase agreements, which have an original maturity 
date of 90 days or less. 

Investments are recognized in the accounting records at cost 
on the date of purchase. For financial statement presentation, 
they are reported at the market value in effect on June 30 
of the current fiscal year. Unrealized gain or loss is included 
with interest income on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets.

Prepaid expenses and inventories of materials and supplies 
are considered expenditures when used. The inventory on 
hand at the end of the fiscal year is valued using a perpetual 
system, and cost is determined using the first-in, first-out 
method of inventory accounting. 

Inventories of retail merchandise are considered expenditures 
when purchased. The value of the inventory on hand at the 
end of the fiscal year is based on a physical count. Cost is 
determined using the retail or weighted average method of 
accounting.

The University prepares its financial statements according to 
the standards set by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). 

NOTE 2 – Component Units
The University of Southern Indiana Foundation is a legally 
separate, tax-exempt entity formed in 1969 to provide support 
for the University of Southern Indiana and its faculty and 
students, to promote educational, scientific, charitable, and 
related activities and programs exclusively for the benefit 
of the University. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-
raising organization to supplement the resources that are 
available to the University in support of its programs. During 
the year ended June 30, 2012, the USI Foundation distributed 
$2,642,735 in direct and indirect support to the University for 
both restricted and unrestricted purposes.

The majority of the resources that the Foundation holds and 
invests, and the income generated by those resources, are 
restricted to the activities of the University by the donors. 
Because these resources can only be used by or for the 
benefit of the University, the USI Foundation is considered 
a component unit of the University, and its audited financial 
statements are discretely presented in the University’s 
financial statements.

On June 22, 2011, the Foundation acquired the net assets of 
University of Southern Indiana/New Harmony Foundation, 
which was formed to support and develop Historic New 
Harmony, an auxiliary enterprise of the University which 
operates in New Harmony, an historic town in Southwestern 
Indiana located thirty miles from campus. 

The USI Foundation maintains its accounts in accordance 
with the principles and practices of fund accounting. Resources 
are classified in accordance with activities or objectives 
specified by donors. The Statement of Activities displays 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets as permanently 
restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted. Complete 
financial statements, including explanatory notes, for the 
USI Foundation can be obtained from the Office of the Vice 
President for Finance and Administration at 8600 University 
Blvd., Evansville, IN 47712.
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NOTE 3 – Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures
It is the policy of the University of Southern Indiana to manage 
the investment portfolio of the University in a manner described 
in IC 30-4-3-3. Authorized investments include obligations of 
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies, certificates 
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market mutual 
funds, savings, and negotiable order-of-withdrawal accounts. 
Investments with Indiana institutions are limited to those banks, 
savings banks, and savings and loan institutions that provide 
deposit insurance for university funds under Indiana statutes by 
the Public Deposit Insurance Fund, in addition to the amounts 
insured by agencies of the United States government—Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation/Savings Association Insurance 
Fund (FDIC/SAIF). Investments with non-Indiana institutions 
must be insured by agencies of the U.S. government to the 
maximum statutory amount of $250,000.

Deposits – At June 30, 2012, the bank balances of the 
University’s operating demand deposit accounts were 
$28,924,834, of which $389,140 was covered by federal 
depository insurance. The remaining balance was insured  
by the Public Deposit Insurance Fund, which covers all  
public funds held in approved Indiana depositories. None of 
these funds were exposed to custodial credit risk, which is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, the University will not be able to recover deposits  
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an  
outside party.

Investments – The University’s investments at June 30, 2012, 
are identified in the table below:

  Investments

 			          Investment Maturities (in Years)
	 Market	 Type	 Less than			   More than
Investment Type	 Value	 %	 1 year	 1–5 years	 6–10 years	 10 years
Money market accounts	 $3,186,491	 3%	 $3,186,491			 
Repurchase agreements	 28,003,722	 30%	 28,003,722			 
Certificates of deposit	 20,804,943	 22%	 12,721,263	 7,782,996	 300,684	
U S Treasury & agency securities 	 41,823,860	 45%	 2,194,289	 13,948,371	 18,580,500	 7,100,700

Totals	 $93,819,016	 100%	 $46,105,765	 $21,731,367	 $18,881,184	 $7,100,700
Maturity %	 100%		  49%	 23%	 20%	 8%

Investment custodial credit risk – This is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counterparty, the University will not 
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Of 
the $93.8 million invested, $41.8 million in U.S. government 
securities are held in the name of the nominee bank and 
insured by policies of the financial institution or guarantees 
of the U.S. government. There are $28 million in repurchase 
agreements registered in the University’s name and backed 
by the implicit guarantee of the U.S. government. All cash in 
the money market accounts and the certificates of deposit are 
insured by FDIC/SAIF, the Public Deposit Insurance Fund,  
or collateral as required by federal regulations.

Interest rate risk – This is the risk that changes in interest 
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
The University’s investment policy does not address exposure  
to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates,  
but the investment objective is to obtain the highest revenue 
while maintaining safety and insuring adequate liquidity for 
institutional needs. To that end, management maintained 49 
percent of investments in cash equivalents and short-term 
investments to be in a position to take advantage of the best 
rates in a timely fashion as well as sustaining adequate cash 
flow for operating needs.

Credit risk – This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty 
to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. Of the total U.S. 
government securities listed in the table above, $39.3 million 
are invested in government-sponsored enterprises that are 
neither guaranteed or insured by the full faith and credit of 
the U.S. Treasury, and, therefore have more credit risk than 
any direct obligation of the U.S. Treasury.

Concentration of credit risk – This is the risk of loss attributed 
to the magnitude of the University’s investment in a single 
issuer. The University’s policy limits the investments in any one 
Indiana institution to 25 percent of the total portfolio of cash, 
certificate of deposits, and repurchase agreements as valued 
at the end of the preceding month. Operating funds which 
are invested in overnight repurchase agreements as part of the 
cash management program are excluded from the 25 percent 
limit. At June 30, 2012, the University was in compliance 
with that policy. The University has more than 5 percent of 
investments with one institution but mitigates this risk with 
FDIC and Indiana Public Depository insurance protection. 

Foreign currency risk – This is the risk that changes in exchange 
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a 
deposit. The University does not have any global investments 
and, therefore, is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
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NOTE 4 – Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowance for 
uncollectible student fees of $607,829 and auxiliary services 
fees of $308,183. Prior-year allowances were $589,765 for 

student fee receivables and $295,224 for auxiliary services 
receivables. The accounts receivable balance for the 2011–12 
fiscal year includes $4,993,976 in net student receivables and 
$4,323,084 in external receivables.

Change in Fair Value� Fair Value at June 30, 2012

Derivative					   
Instrument	 Type	 Amount	 Classification	 Amount	 Current Notional

	 Cash flow hedge:		  Derivative	
Series 2006	 Pay-fixed interest	 $(444,962)	 Instrument Interest 	 $(1,409,640)	 $6,209,115
	 rate swap		  Rate Swap

	 Cash flow hedge:		  Derivative
Series 2008A	 Pay-fixed interest	 $(596,948)	 Instrument Interest	 $(1,490,077)	 $9,050,000
	 rate swap		  Rate Swap

		  Current	 Effective	 Maturity		  Counterparty
Type	 Objective	 Notional	 Date	 Date	 Terms	 Credit Rating

Pay-fixed	 Hedge of changes				    65% of 3 mo.
interest rate	 in cash flows on the	 $6,209,115	 1/01/2008 	 1/01/2028	 USD-LIBOR-BBA	 A2
swap	 Series 2006 Bonds				  

Pay-fixed	 Hedge of changes				    65% of 3 mo.

interest rate	 in cash flows on the	 $9,050,000	 7/01/2008	 10/01/2021	 USD-LIBOR-BBA	 A2
swap	 Series 2008 Bonds				    �w/- 1 day look  

back, 79.0 bps

The following table displays the objectives and terms of the University’s hedging derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 
2012, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty:

NOTE 5 – Derivative Instruments
The fair value balances and notional amounts of the derivative 
instruments outstanding at June 30, 2012, classified by type 
and the fair value changes of those derivative instruments are 
as follows: 

As of June 30, 2012, the University determined that both  
pay-fixed interest rate swaps met the criteria for effectiveness. 
The pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps are designed 
to synthetically fix the cash flows on the variable rate bonds. 
The fair value of the interest rate swaps was estimated based 
on the present value of their estimated future cash flows.

Credit Risk –The fair value of the hedging derivative instruments 
is in a liability position as of June 30, 2012, with Series 2006 
having a balance of $1,409,640 and Series 2008A having a balance 
of $1,490,077. Since both of the derivative instruments and the 
debts being hedged are with the same counterparty, there is no 
credit risk exposure. The fair value of the derivative instruments 
would simply be netted against the payoff of the debts. 

Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes 
in interest rates will adversely impact the fair market value of 
the derivative instruments. On a pay-fixed, receive-variable 
interest rate swap, the University will be negatively impacted 
by the lower rate environment, which will decrease the fair 
market values of its derivative instrument. The derivative 
instrument for Series 2006 fixes the hedged debt at 4.67 
percent and Series 2008A is fixed at 3.97 percent. 

Basis Risk – Basis risk is the risk that the University may lose 
cash flows because of the differences in the indexes upon 

which the derivative instrument and the item it hedges are 
based. The University is not exposed to basis risk since both 
derivative instruments and the associated debts being hedged 
are based on the three-month LIBOR index.

Termination Risk – The University or its counterparties may 
terminate a derivative instrument if the other party fails to 
perform under the terms of the contract. The University is 
also exposed to termination risk if the student fee or auxiliary 
bonds are prepaid or partially prepaid. This risk is only to the 
extent the notional amount of the swap transactions exceeds 
the remaining amount after the prepayment. 

Rollover Risk – Rollover risk is the risk that the maturity of 
the derivative instrument is shorter than the maturity of the 
associated debt. Since both the derivative instruments and the 
debt being hedged have identical maturity dates, there is no 
rollover risk to the University.
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The University of Southern Indiana Student Fee Bonds Series 
D of 1993, Series F of 1998, Series G of 1999, Series H of 
2001, Series I of 2004, and Series J of 2009 are secured by 
a pledge of and first lien on student fees. Student Fee Bonds 
Series 2006 are secured by a pledge of and junior lien on 
student fees.

The University of Southern Indiana Auxiliary System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2003; Auxiliary System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2008A; and Auxiliary System Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A 
are secured by a pledge of and parity first lien on the net 
income from the Auxiliary System (student housing, parking 

facilities, and dining services), any insurance proceeds, 
amounts held in the debt service funds or project funds,  
and investment income thereon. 

Student fee bond Series G is a variable rate bond currently 
bearing interest at weekly rates ranging between zero and 
10 percent. The rate in effect at June 30, and the rate used 
to calculate the future debt service requirements, was .20 
percent. All the other bonds are term or serial with fixed 
annual rates as identified in the preceding table. Annual  
debt service requirements through maturity for bonds and 
notes payable are presented in the following chart:

  schedule of bonds and notes payable
 			   Current 		  Original	  	June 30, 2011
	 Issue	  Interest 	 Year	 Maturity	 Issue	 Principal	 Interest 	 Total
 	 Date	  Rate	 Rate	 Date	 Amount	  Outstanding	 Outstanding	 Outstanding

Student Fee Bonds	 							     
     Series D, Health Professions Center	 1993	 2.25% to 5.8%	 5.75%	 2015	 $24,678,101	 $1,036,544	 $2,303,456	 $3,340,000
     Series F, Liberal Arts Center	 1998	 3.55% to 4.7%	 4.70%	 2013	 15,280,000	 1,600,000	 62,425	 1,662,425
     Series G, Recreation & Fitness Center	 1999	 0% to 10%*	. 25%	 2019	 4,700,000	 2,600,000	 33,210	 2,633,210
     Series H, Science & Education Center	 2001	 3.5% to 5.0%	 4.50%	 2021	 25,260,000	 16,165,000	 4,441,301	 20,606,301
     Series I, Library Construction	 2004	 2.0% to 5.375%	 5.00%	 2023	 49,590,000	 31,710,000	 9,751,400	 41,461,400
     Series 2006, Recreation & Fitness Center 	 2006	 4.67%  	 4.67%	 2028	 7,250,000	 6,209,115	 2,590,907	 8,800,022
     Series J, Business and Engineering Center	 2009	 2.5. to 5.0% 	 5.00%	 2028	 50,185,000	 45,245,000	 22,893,768	 68,138,768

Auxiliary System Bonds	 							     
     Series 2003, Student Housing Facilities	 2003	 3.0% to 4.5%	 3.50%	 2024	 8,005,000	 5,845,000	 1,776,453	 7,621,453
     Series 2008A, Student Housing Facilities	 2008	 3.97%	 3.97%	 2021	 9,800,000	 9,050,000	 2,808,775	 11,858,775
     Series 2011A, Student Housing Facilities	 2011	 1.63%	 1.63%	 2016	 11,550,000	 11,550,000	 470,663	 12,020,663
				  
Total					     $218,523,101	 $131,010,659	 $47,132,359	 $178,143,017

*This bond is a variable interest bond with weekly rates. The rate listed above is the average rate paid during the fiscal year. 

NOTE 6 – Debt Related to Capital Assets
Bonds Payable – Outstanding bonds payable at June 30, 2012, total $131,010,659 and are identified in the following schedule. 

  annual debt service requirements
			   Total	 Total	 Total
Fiscal Year	 Bonds	 Notes	 Principal	 Interest	 Debt Service

2012–13	 10,709,160		  10,709,160	 6,250,822	 16,959,982
2013–14	 10,093,825		  10,093,825	 5,847,144	 15,940,969
2014–15	 10,092,567		  10,092,567	 5,451,630	 15,544,197
2015–16	 10,517,766		  10,517,766	 5,055,737	 15,573,503
2016–17	 9,460,798		  9,460,798	 4,066,879	 13,527,677
2017–22	 46,721,227		  46,721,227	 14,731,538	 61,452,765
2022–27	 25,434,740		  25,434,740	 5,277,394	 30,712,134
2027–29	 7,980,576		  7,980,576	 451,214	 8,431,790

Total	 $131,010,659	 $0	 $131,010,659	 $47,132,358	 $178,143,017

NOTE 7 – 2012 Refunding Bond Issue
On December 14, 2011, the University of Southern Indiana 
issued $11,550,000 in Series 2011A revenue auxiliary system 
bonds with an interest rate of 1.63 percent to refund 

$11,550,000 of outstanding fixed rate Series 2001A auxiliary 
system revenue bonds with a fixed interest rate of 5 percent. 
The 1.63 percent interest rate is a fixed rate with a five-year 
amortization based upon a direct bond purchase agreement 
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with JPMorgan Chase Bank. The proceeds of $11,550,000 
redeemed series 2001A in full. As a result, the bonds are 
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed from the Statement of Net Assets. The refunding 
resulted in an accounting loss of $168,708. The University of 
Southern Indiana in effect reduced its aggregate debt service 
payment by $1,406,674 over the next 5 years and realized an 
economic gain (difference between the present values of the 
old and new debt service payments) of $1,172,752. 

NOTE 8 – Operating Leases
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the University spent 
$376,560 on operating leases which are included in supplies 
and other services in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets of which $105,573 was spent on 
leasing off campus classroom and office space, $256,774 was 
spent on equipment, and $14,213 was spent on vehicle leases.

NOTE 9 – Compensated Absence Liability
Vacation leave and similar compensated absences (such as 
sick leave) based on past service are accrued as a liability as 
earned. The liability is measured at the salary rate in effect 
at the Statement of Net Assets date, and additional amounts 
are accrued for all required salary-related payments due a 
terminating or retiring employee. The salary-related payments 
subject to this accrual include the University’s share of Social 
Security and Medicare taxes, as well as the University’s 
contributions to a defined benefit pension plan.

The total cumulative compensated absence liability reflected 
in the Statement of Net Assets is $2,199,096 and $2,384,956 
for June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The current year 
change represents $244,760 decrease in accrued vacation; 
$65,956 increase in sick leave liability; $13,659 decrease in 
Social Security and Medicare taxes; and $6,623 increase in 
Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF) contributions. 

During the fiscal year, $259,500 was paid out to terminating 
employees. Payout for terminating employees in fiscal year 
2012–13 is expected to increase approximately 64 percent 
because of the number who will have reached the requisite 
retirement age and years of service. For that reason, $426,801 
of the total compensated absence liability is classified as a 
current liability and the remaining $1,772,295 is classified as  
a noncurrent liability.

NOTE 10 – Termination Benefits Liability
GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, 
requires the University to recognize a liability and an expense 
for voluntary termination benefits, such as early-retirement 
incentives, when the offer is accepted and the amount can 
be estimated. Members of USI’s regular full-time faculty and 
administrative staff who have been employed in an eligible 
position prior to January 1, 1999, who have 15 or more 
consecutive years of service, and who are age 60 or older 
may receive early-retirement benefits upon request. These 
benefits include a lump-sum retirement service pay calculated 
as a percent of final-year salary based on length of service, 
not to exceed 25 percent, and continued contribution to 
retirement annuity contracts through the end of the fiscal year 
in which the retiree reaches age 66. Salaries are assumed 
to increase at a rate of 1.8 percent annually for purposes of 
calculating this liability.

USI has 25 retirees currently receiving early-retirement benefits, 
five of whose benefits stop after this fiscal year, and nine more 
who have arranged to begin receiving benefits within the next 
three years. The liability for these benefits totals $788,584 at 
June 30, 2012. Of that amount, $307,073 is expected to be 
paid out during the following fiscal year, and the remaining 
$481,511 has been classified as noncurrent. This liability will 
change annually as more employees elect this benefit and as 
benefits for current retirees end.
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NOTE 11 – Retirement Plans
Substantially all regular employees of the University are 
covered by either the Teachers Insurance and Annuity 
Association-College Retirement Equities Fund Retirement 
Plan (TIAA-CREF) or the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Fund (PERF). The TIAA-CREF plan is an IRC 403(b) defined 
contribution plan; PERF is a defined benefit plan under IRC 
401(a) and a state plan described in IC 5-10.2 and 5-10.3.  
The University contributed $6,036,128 to these programs 
in fiscal year 2011–12, which represents approximately 11 
percent of the total University payroll and 13 percent of the 
benefit-eligible employees’ payroll for the same period.

Faculty and Administrative Staff Eligible employees may 
participate in the TIAA-CREF Retirement Plan upon the 
completion of one year of employment. Participation may 
begin sooner if the employee was a participant in TIAA-CREF, 
or another university-sponsored retirement plan, for at least 
one year prior to eligible employment at USI. The University 
contributes 11 percent of each participating employee’s base 
appointment salary up to $10,800 and 15 percent of the base 
appointment salary above $10,800. The University contributed 
$4,932,330 to this plan for 601 participating employees for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, and $4,813,874 for 596 
participating employees for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. 
The annual payroll for this group totaled $35,954,661 and 
$35,340,910 for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011 
respectively.

TIAA-CREF issues an annual financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for 
the plan as a whole and for its participants. That report may be 
obtained by writing Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-
College Retirement Equities Fund, 730 3rd Avenue, New York, 
NY 10017-3206, or via its web site at www.tiaa-cref.org.

Support Staff Employees in eligible positions and who work 
at least half-time participate in PERF, a retirement program 
administered by the Indiana Public Retirement System, an 
agency of the State of Indiana. PERF is an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system, which provides 
retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit 
provisions are established and/or amended by the State of 
Indiana. There are two parts to this plan: an annuity savings 
plan to which the University contributes 3 percent of the 
employee’s salary, and a defined benefit agent multi-employer 
plan to which the University contributed 8.6 percent of the 
employee’s salary this fiscal year. Employees are eligible to 
participate in this plan immediately upon employment and are 
fully vested in the defined benefit part of the plan after ten years 
of employment. The University contributed $1,094,090 for 416 
employees participating in PERF during the 2011–12 fiscal year 
and $898,047 for 415 employees participating during 2010–11.

The contribution requirements for plan members of PERF 
are set by the PERF Board of Trustees. Actuarial information 
related to the University’s participation in the plan is disclosed 
in the tables below for three past fiscal years. 

  perf–schedule of funding progress� (dollars in thousands)

	 Fiscal	 Actuarial	 Actuarial	 Overfunded/ 		  Actual	 Overfunded/
	 Year	 Value of	 Accrued	 (Unfunded)	 Funded	 Covered	 (Unfunded) 
	 Ending	 Plan Assets	 Liability	 Accrued Liability	 Ratio	 Payroll	 Liability as % of
	 June 30	 (A)	 (B)	 (C)	 (A/B)	 (D)	 Payroll (C/D)

	 2009	    7,347	    8,461	    1,114	 86.8%	  8,800	 12.7%
	 2010	  6,179	  9,174	  2,995	 67.4%	  8,912	 33.6%
	 2011	  5,307	  9,399	  4,092	 56.5%	  8,980	 45.6%

  perf–development of net pension obligation
	 2009	 2010	 2011
Annual Required contribution (ARC) *	 $493,983	 $590,297	 $877,375
Interest on Net Pension Obligation @ 7%	 (38,466)	 (41,645)	 (38,109)
Adjustments to ARC **	 43,834	 47,457	 43,873

Annual Pension Cost (APC)	 499,351	 596,110	 883,139
Contributions made by USI ***	 543,200	 566,123	 608,260

Change in Net Pension Obligation 	 (43,849)	 29,987	 274,879
Net Pension Obligation, Beginning of Year	 (530,559)	 (574,408)	 (544,421)

Net Pension Obligation, End of Year	 ($574,408)        	 ($544,421)	 ($269,542)

* Pro rata portion of total ARC for State. 
** Net Pension Obligation at beginning of year divided by amortization factor of 12.1037 for 2009 and 2010 and 12.409 for 2011. 
*** Percentage of APC contributed: 2009 at 109%; 2010 at 95%; 2011 at 69%.
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The required contribution was determined as part of the 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2011, using the Entry Age 
Normal Cost Method. The actuarial assumptions included: 
(a) 7 percent investment rate of return; (b) projected salary 
increases of 3.25 percent to 4.5 percent; and (c) annual cost-
of-living adjustments of 1 percent. 

The Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the 
plan as a whole and for PERF participants. That report may  
be obtained by writing the INPRS, 1 North Capitol Avenue, 
Suite 001, Indianapolis, IN 46204 or by calling 317/232-3882.

NOTE 12 – Risk Management
The University is exposed to various risks of loss: torts; errors  
or omissions; theft, damage, or destruction of assets; job-related 
illness or injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
University manages these risks of loss through combinations of 
risk retention and commercial insurance. Property insurance 
for buildings and contents and other special form coverage is 
subject to a self-insured retention of $25,000 per occurrence 
or $2,500 per occurrence if the property is owned by the USI 
Foundation or SIHE Holdings, LLC. Earthquake and flood have 
a minimum deductible of $100,000 each loss. Educators’ legal 
liability has a $50,000 deductible for each wrongful acts claim. 
General liability, commercial crime, workers’ compensation, 
commercial auto, and medical malpractice, as well as life 
and disability insurance, are insured by commercial insurance 
subject to various deductibles. No liability exists at the 
Statement of Net Assets date for unpaid claims.

The University has four health care plans for full-time benefit-
eligible employees and two plans for retirees. Two of the 
plans for employees and retirees are funded under a cost-plus 
arrangement whereby the University is billed for actual claims 
paid by the insurer on behalf of the covered participants plus 
an administrative fee. Retirees and the majority of employees, 
75 percent, participate in the fully-funded cost-plus plan. 
For fiscal year ended on June 30, 2012, the University’s 
contribution to these health care plans totaled $9,846,138 for 
962 employees and $1,250,116 for 264 retirees. For the same 
period, employees and retirees made contributions totaling 
$2,129,835 and $253,788 respectively.

The University assumes the risk for medical claims exceeding 
the maximum expected cost but has mitigated the additional 
risk by purchasing specific and aggregate stop loss coverage 
at 125 percent of the expected claims liability. The University 
also has established a reserve to cover any unpaid liability 
beyond 125 percent. The liability for medical claims incurred 
but not reported at June 30, 2012, is based on an average 
monthly claim multiplied by the plan provider’s average 
turnaround time from when claims are incurred to when 
claims are submitted to USI for payment. Changes in the 
balance of claims liabilities during the 2011 fiscal year are  
as follows:

NOTE 13 – VEBA Trust
The University established a Voluntary Employees’ Benefit 
Association (VEBA) Trust for the purpose of providing 
medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to employees  
who retire after attaining age 60 with at least ten years of 
service and to those retiring under the Rule of 85. The trust 
is funded from three sources: University contributions and 
reserves designated by the Board of Trustees for this purpose,  
employee payroll deductions for post-retirement benefits,  
and retiree contributions for medical insurance premiums. 
Funds will accumulate in the trust for several years before  
any disbursements are made. The University does not 
anticipate that the trust will pay for all post-retirement 
benefits, but rather be used to reduce the increasing burden  
of such expenses on the current operating funds. A summary  
of the activity in the trust for the year ending June 30, 2012,  
is as follows:

Funds that are placed into the trust cannot revert to the 
University under any circumstances; therefore, the financial 
statements of the University do not include the value of  
these assets.

Beginning liability, June 30, 2011	 $2,806,148   

Claims incurred	 8,904,672    

Claims paid	 (8,995,255)

Ending liability, June 30, 2012	 $2,715,565

	 MARKET
Fund balance at July 1, 2011	 $13,164,949
Transfer from University reserves	 650,000
Employee/employer contributions	 172,363
Retiree/employer contributions	 26,815
Reinvested net earnings	 286,141
Net gain/(loss) on sales of trust investments	 78,281
Less: Management fees and taxes	 (35,430)
Net change in market value	 (223,716)

Fund balance at June 30, 2012	 $14,119,403	

  veba trust
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NOTE 14 – Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Plan Description. The USI Voluntary Employees’ Benefit 
Association (VEBA) Trust is a single-employer defined benefit 
healthcare plan administered by the Old National Trust 
Company. The VEBA Trust was established for the purpose of 
providing medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees and 
their spouses. The USI Board of Trustees has the authority 
to establish or amend the benefit provisions of the plan. Old 
National Trust Co. does not provide a stand-alone financial 
report of the USI VEBA Trust, but the plan assets and financial 
activity are included as part of its publicly-available audited 
financial report. That report may be obtained by writing to 
Old National Bancorp, One Main Street, Evansville, IN 47708, 
or by calling 800/731-2265.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements are established 
and may be amended by the USI Board of Trustees. The required 
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing 
requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits 
as determined annually by the governing board. For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012, USI contributed $2,145,520 to the plan, 
including $1,640,018 for current premiums (approximately 84 
percent of total premiums), and $650,000 to prefund benefits. 
Plan members receiving benefits contributed $311,158, or 
approximately 16 percent of the total premiums, through their 
required contributions for medical insurance coverage. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The University’s 
annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) 
is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
(ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined 
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. 
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following 
table shows the components of the USI VEBA Trust’s annual 
OPEB cost for the last three fiscal years, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the net OPEB 
obligation to the plan: 

The USI VEBA’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the 
annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation for the last three fiscal years are as follows:

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2012,  
the plan was 30.5 percent funded. The actuarial accrued 
liability (AAL) for benefits was $46,266,049, and the actuarial 
value of assets was $14,119,403, resulting in an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $32,146,646. The covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the 
plan) was $47,528,932, and the ratio of the UAAL to covered 
payroll was 67.6 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, 

mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend. 
Amounts determined 
regarding the funded 
status of the plan and 
the annual required 
contributions of the 
employer are subject 
to continual revision 
as actual results are 
compared with past 
expectations and new 

estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding 
Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

	 2010	 2011	 2012

Annual required contribution	 $3,243,885	 $3,243,885	 $4,379,913
Interest on net OPEB obligation	 32,080	 123,977	 178,983
Adjustment to annual required contribution	 (37,644)	 (170,619)	 (213,541)

Annual OPEB cost	 3,238,321	 3,197,243	 4,345,355
Contributions made	 (1,925,511)	 (1,882,421)	 (2,145,520)

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation	 1,312,810	 1,314,822	 2,199,835
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year	 458,283	 1,771,093	 3,085,915

Net OPEB obligation, end of year	 $1,771,093	 $3,085,915	 5,285,750

			   Percentage
		  Annual	 of Annual	 Net
	 Year	 OPEB	 OPEB Cost	 OPEB
	 Ending	 Cost	 Contributed	 Obligation

	 6-30-2010	 $3,238,321	 59.5%	 $1,771,093

	 6-30-2011	 $3,197,242	 58.9%	 $3,085,915

	 6-30-2012	 $4,345,355	 49.4%	 $5,285,750
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Actuarial Methods and Assumption. Projections of benefits for 
financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) 
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques 
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility 
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

	
In the most recent actuarial study evaluation, which was July 1, 
2011, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 5.8 percent investment rate 
of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate 
of the expected long-term investment returns on the asset classes 
held in the VEBA Trust, and an annual healthcare cost trend 
rate for each medical plan. In general, the trend rates start at 8 
percent initially, reducing each year until reaching an ultimate 
rate of 5.7 percent in 2020. The actuarial value of assets for the 
purposes of determining the annual recommended contribution 
is the market value of the assets. The UAAL is being amortized 
as a level dollar amount on an open basis over a 30-year period.

  Schedule of Funding Progress for the USI VEBA Trust Retiree Healthcare Benefit Plan

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(A)

Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL) –
Projected Unit 
Credit Method 

(B)

Unfunded AAL
(UAAL)
(B – A)

Funded
Ratio
(A/B)

Covered
Payroll

(C)

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/C)

	 6/30/2010	 $7,940,404	 $31,590,331	 $23,649,927	 25.14%	 $45,316,205	 52.19%

	 6/30/2011	 $13,164,949	 $31,590,331	 $18,425,382	 41.67%	 $46,432,950	 39.68%

	 6/30/2012	 $14,119,403	 $46,266,049	 $32,146,646	 30.52%	 $47,528,932	 67.64%

  functional expenditures
	 SALARIES 		  SCHOLAR-		  SUPPLIES and		  2012	 2011
FUNCTION	 and WAGES	 BENEFITS	 SHIPS	 UTILITIES	 OTHER SVCS	 DEPRECIATION	 TOTAL	 TOTAL
Instruction	 $28,251,874	 $11,754,027			   $2,636,799		  $42,642,700	 $38,405,077
Academic Support	 4,828,889	 2,226,490			   4,025,953		  11,081,332	 10,868,864
Student Services	 4,036,784	 2,075,610			   2,072,301		  8,184,695	 7,088,397
Institutional Support	 8,930,182	 3,371,033			   3,115,767		  15,416,982	 15,707,243
Operation &
Maintenance of Plant	 3,233,299	 2,190,429		  4,690,998	 4,078,087		  14,192,813	 16,314,865
Depreciation						      11,973,251	 11,973,251	 10,090,913
Student Aid	 161,297	 882,367	 10,343,969		  7,080		  11,394,713	 11,897,706
Public Service	 1,601,348	 595,429			   1,111,251		  3,308,028	 3,107,997
Research	 162,010	 32,518			   285,490		  480,018	 240,062
Auxiliary Enterprises	 4,181,218	 1,859,658		  1,063,421	 14,565,266		  21,669,563	 21,816,468

TOTAL	 $55,386,901	 $24,987,561	 $10,343,969	 $5,754,419	 $31,897,994	 $11,973,251	 $140,344,095	 $135,537,592

NOTE 15 – Functional Expenditures
Operating expenses are reported by natural classification on 
the face of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Assets. Some users of the financial statements have a 

need to know expenses by functional classification, either for 
trend analysis or for comparison to other higher education 
institutions. This information is presented in the table below. 
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NOTE 16 – Construction in Progress
Construction in progress at year-end totals $3.7 million (see 
capital assets table below). Projects under construction include 
the Applied Engineering Center and the associated improvements 
to Bluff Lane, renovation of The Loft dining facility in the 
University Center, the first phase of the University bookstore 
renovation, and renovation of the Morton, Durbin, and Hanley 
buildings in student housing. The total expended to date on 
the projects is $2.3 million, and the estimated additional cost  
to complete them is $4.5 million. 

Projects in design include advising centers for the College 
of Nursing and Health Professions and the Pott College of 

Science, Engineering, and Education and the third phase of  
the campus loop road project. Amounts expended to date 
on the projects total $7,200, and the projects have a total 
estimated remaining cost of approximately $1.2 million. 

The balance of construction in progress relates to a  
Teaching Theatre on campus. To date, $1.4 million has  
been spent for project planning. The design phase began  
in fall 2009 with an estimated project cost of $17.3 million. 
The project was approved for construction by the State  
of Indiana legislature in spring 2011 with completion 
scheduled for summer 2014. 

NOTE 17 – �Capital Assets, Net of  
Accumulated Depreciation

The table below displays the increase in total capital assets 
from $302.7 million at July 1, 2011, to $306.8 million on  

June 30, 2012. Gross capital assets, less accumulated 
depreciation of $130.1 million, equal net capital assets  
of $176.7 million at June 30, 2012.

  capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
	 Balance			   Balance	 Accumulated	 Net Capital
CAPITAL ASSETS	 June 30, 2011	 Additions	 Deletions	 June 30, 2012	 Depreciation	 Assets
Land	 $4,608,923	 $14,000		  $4,622,923		  $4,622,923
Land Improvements	 12,218,211	 973,287		  13,191,498	 5,866,267	 7,325,231
Infrastructure	 6,281,213	 558,008		  6,839,221	 1,788,261	 5,050,960
Educational Buildings	 156,761,161	 114,175	 1,330,444	 155,544,892	 60,185,692	 95,359,200
Auxiliary Buildings	 99,211,985	 1,489,558		  100,701,543	 46,095,875	 54,605,668
Equipment	 17,451,581	 1,270,054	 259,772	 18,461,863	 13,383,547	 5,078,316
Library Materials	 3,564,288	 134,692	 10,778	 3,688,202	 2,731,614	 956,588
Construction in Progress	 2,620,485	 4,802,392	 3,677,757	 3,745,120		  3,745,120
Totals	 $302,717,847	 $9,356,166	 $5,278,751	 $306,795,262	 $130,051,256	 $176,744,006

NOTE 18 – Reclassify 2011 Financial Information
Other postemployment benefits are now discretely presented 
as a noncurrent liability based on a revised interpretation and 
clarification of GASB 45 requirements. The Statement of Net 
Assets and the Statement of Cash Flows have been amended 
so that the 2011 financial information is comparable and 
consistent with the 2012 financial statement presentation. 

There was no change in total revenues, expenses, or net assets 
as a result of this reclassification.
 
NOTE 19 – Subsequent Events
The 2009 Indiana General Assembly approved $15 million 
in bonding authority for the construction of a $16.5 million, 
350-seat Teaching Theatre on the USI campus to replace 
the current theatre, costume shop, and scene shop located 
four miles from campus. The project received final approvals 
from the Commission for Higher Education and the State 
Budget Committee in 2011 and construction will begin in 
August 2012. In October 2012, the University will issue $13 
million of the $15 million legislatively authorized student 

fee replacement bonds and fund the balance of the $16.5 
million project from $2 million in private gifts currently being 
solicited, and $1.5 million of University resources, much of 
which has already been expended to fund the design. In the 
event that private gifts are not forthcoming, the University has 
access to endowment income from the University of Southern 
Indiana Foundation that will cover any shortfall. 

In addition, the University will refund its Series H and 
Series I bonds taking advantage of historically low interest 
rates. The new Series K bond issue totaling $59.3 million 
will be composed of a Series K-1 portion of $13 million for 
the new Teaching Theatre bonding, a Series K-2 taxable 
portion of $3.5 million, and a Series K-3 tax exempt portion 
of $42.8 million. Series K-2 and Series K-3 will be direct 
bond purchases by Old National Bank and Bank of America 
respectively. Total all in costs for Series K will be 2.39% with 
the K-2 taxable portion at 1.25 percent, and the tax exempt 
K-3 portion at 1.95 percent. Savings over the life of the bonds 
will be $5.7 million with net present value savings of 11.69 
percent or $5.1 million. 
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Supplementary Information

  five-year comparative data

		  2011–12	 2010–11	 2009–10	 2008–09	 2007–08
Enrollment (Fall Semester)

Total students
Undergraduates
Women
African American
Other minority
International
Age 25 plus
Indiana residents
Full-time equivalent

10,820
9,871
6,575

637
478
188

2,655
9,272
9,031

10,702
9,846
6,403

585
477
196

2,565
9,255
8,971

10,516
9,648
6,331

527
411
162

2,559
9,168
8,789

10,126
9,320
6,112

515
355
154

2,346
8,897
8,437

9,939
9,225
5,971

486
266
115

2,243
8,798
8,230

Degrees Granted (Academic Year)
Doctorate
Masters
Baccalaureate
Associate

14
244

1,531
82

15
280

1,353
76

0
218

1,377
87

0
226

1,288
113

0
257

1,241
123

Faculty (Fall Semester)
Full-time
Percentage tenured
Part-time (FTE)
FTE students/FTE faculty

309
39

163
19.1

314
37

159
19.0

323
32

151
18.5

323
36

143
18.1

304
35

149
18.2

This information is presented as additional data and is not subject to the audit opinion expressed by the Indiana State Board of Accounts.
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Fall 2011
Indiana (89 counties)� 9,274
Out-of-State (44 states)� 1,358
International (38 countries)� 188

Total Enrollment� 10,820

Home Counties of USI Students (Fall 2011)

University of Southern Indiana

PORTER

ETROP AL

NEWTON

LAKE

JASPER

STARKE

PULASKI

MARSHALL

ST. JOSEPH ELKHART

KOSCIUSKO

FULTON

LAGRANGE STEUBEN

DE KALBNOBLE

WHITLEY ALLEN

ADAMSWELLS

HUNTING-
TON

WABASH
MIAMI

CASS

CARROLL

WHITE

BENTON

WARREN

TIPPECANOE

FOUNTAIN MONT-
GOMERY

CLINTON

BOONE

HOWARD

TIPTON

HAMILTON

GRANT

MADISON

BLACK-
FORD JAY

DELAWARE

RANDOLPH

WAYNE

HENRY

UNIONFAYETTE

RUSH

HANCOCK

SHELBY

MARION

JOHNSONMORGAN

HENDRICKS
PUTNAM

PARKE

CLAY

VIGO

V
E
R
M
I
L
L
I
O
N

SULLIVAN

GREENE

OWEN

KNOX
DAVIESS MARTIN

MONROE

LAWRENCE

ORANGE

BROWN

JACKSON

WASHINGTON

BARTHOLOMEW

DECATUR

JENNINGS

RIPLEY

SCOTT

JEFFERSON
SWITZERLAND

OHIO

DEARBORN

FRANKLIN

CLARK

FLOYD

HARRISON

CRAWFORD

PERRY

DUBOIS
PIKE

GIBSON

POSEY VANDER-
BURGH

WARRICK

SPENCER

140 55

11
29 31 8

7

600

8
83

10 8

7 4 2
1 5

148

4

11 16

27 11
0 1

140

4
70 14

5

29
18

65

19

37
27

19

12

44
22

12

61 16 53
15

3

21

20
50

99

48
41

28

69

63

73

28

144
250

1,108

64
363

562 3,115

35 7

5

487

38166

57
23

152

39
131

52

431

135 33

46

8
15 0

3

12

34

4

12

29



It is the policy of the University of Southern Indiana 
to be in full compliance with all federal and state non-
discrimination and equal opportunity laws, orders, 
and regulations relating to race, sex, religion, disability, 
age, national origin, sexual orientation, or veteran 
status. Questions or concerns should be directed to 
the Affirmative Action Officer, USI Human Resources 
Department, University of Southern Indiana, 8600 
University Boulevard, Evansville, Indiana 47712.

The Disabled Student Services program is provided 
to help students overcome or compensate for 
obstacles related to a physical, emotional, or learning 
disability. Resources include a reader/taping service, 
test accomodations service, tutors, sign language 
interpreter service, notetaker supplies, literature, 
and personal assistance. Program staff work with 
all offices to insure that reasonable and approriate 
accommodations are provided to students with 
disabilities. A detailed brochure is available from the 
Counseling Center. Students requesting services must 
register with the Disabled Student Services program 
in the Counseling Center at least 60 days prior to 
date needed.



P12-105761

8600 University Boulevard
Evansville, Indiana 47712




